
 

AGENDA 

 
 



 

1 

 

 CITY OF HOPEWELL 
Hopewell, Virginia 23860 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
Jasmine E. Gore, Mayor, Ward #4 

Patience Bennett, Vice Mayor, Ward #7 
Debbie Randolph, Councilor, Ward #1 
Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward #2 

Johnny Partin, Councilor, Ward #3 
Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward #5 

Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward #6 
 

John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 

Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 

 

AGENDA 
 

PHONE: 541-2249 
FAX: 541-2248 

 

e-mail: info@hopewellva.gov 
www.hopewellva.gov 

rarrington@hopewellva.gov 

 Date: April 23, 2019 MUNICIPAL BUILDING Closed Meeting:  5:30 p.m. 
Regular Meeting: 7:30 p.m. 

 

OPEN MEETING 

 

5:30 p.m. Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: To go into closed meeting for (1) discussion and consideration of specific 

appointees of city council (boards, commissions, authorities); (2) discussion, consideration and interviews 

of specific appointees or employees of city council (city manager, city clerk, city attorney); (3) 

consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining to actual 

litigation, where such consultation or briefing in open meeting would adversely affect the negotiating or 

litigating posture of city council (registrar); and (4) consultation with legal counsel employed or retained 

by city council related thereto and regarding specific legal matters, requiring the provision of legal advice 

by such counsel in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) [two items], (7), and (8), respectively. 

 

Roll Call  

 

CLOSED MEETING 

 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE § 2.2-3712 (D): Were only public business matters 

(1) lawfully exempted from open-meeting requirements and (2) identified in the closed-meeting motion 

discussed in closed meeting? 

 

Roll Call 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: To amend/adopt agenda 

 

Roll Call 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

7:30 p.m.   Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

 

Prayer by Judy Bailey, of John Randolph Pastoral Care, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the 

United States of America led by Councilor Holloway. 

mailto:info@hopewellva.gov
http://www.hopewellva.gov/


 

2 

 

Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be approved or 

received by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion under 

the regular agenda at the request of any Councilor. 

 

C-1 Minutes:  March 5, March 19, March 21, March 26, and March 28, 2019 

C-2 Pending List:  

C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions: April 30, 2019 (budget work session); May 14, 2019 (two 

conditional use permits); May 28, 2019 (spot blight, amendment of Enterprise Zone ordinance) 

C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:   

C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:   

C-6 Routine Grant Approval:  

C-7 Public Hearing Announcement: April 30, 2019 (Project Laguna); May 7, 2019 (FY2020 tax rate, 

FY2020 school division budget, FY2020 city budget); May 14, 2019 (school board candidates) 

C-8 Information for Council Review: CPMT minutes – March 26, 2019; BZA August 1, 2018; DDRC 

minutes February 6, 2019 and March 6, 2019) 

C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations:  Sexual Assault Awareness proclamation; Alcohol 

Awareness proclamation; ClearGov and Open Finance software presentations; NLC-Congressional 

Cities presentation 

C-10 Additional Announcements:  

 

Public Hearings 

CITY CLERK: All persons addressing Council shall approach the microphone, give name and, if they reside in 

Hopewell, their ward number, and limit comments to five minutes. No person shall be permitted to address 

Council a second time until all others have been heard and no one may speak more than twice on any subject in 

any one meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council as a body, any questions must be asked through the 

mayor only, and there shall be no discussion without permission of the mayor. Any person who makes personal, 

impertinent, abusive, or slanderous statements, or incites disorderly conduct in Council Chambers may be barred 

by the mayor from further audience before Council, and removed, subject to appeal to a majority of Council. (See 

Rules 405 and 406) 

 

PH-1 Amendment of FY19 Hopewell Public Schools Budget 

 

 ISSUE:   The FY19 budget needs to be amended to reflect current state and federal allocations, and  

 additional grants received by the school division. 

 

 MOTION:            
 

              

 

 

Communications from Citizens 

CITY CLERK: A Communications from Citizens period, limited in total time to 30 minutes, is part of the Order 

of Business at each regular Council meeting. All persons addressing Council shall approach the microphone, give 

name and, if they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit comments to three minutes. No one is permitted 

to speak on any item scheduled for consideration on the regular agenda of the meeting. All remarks shall be 

addressed to Council as a body, any questions must be asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no 

discussion without permission of the mayor. Any person who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or slanderous 

statements, or incites disorderly conduct in Council Chambers, may be barred by the mayor from further audience 

before Council, and removed, subject to appeal to a majority of Council. (See Rules 405 and 406.) 

 

  



 

3 

 

Regular Business 

Reports of City Manager: 

 

R-1 The Local Choice (TLC) Annual Insurance Renewal 

 

 ISSUE:  It is time to renew employee health insurance, which requires council approval. Council  

 is asked to review the information and approve the 2019-2020 The Local Choice (TLC) health care rates  

 as proposed by OneDigital, the City’s benefit consultant. 

 

 MOTION:            

 

              

 

 Roll Call 

 

R-2 Downtown Refuse Collection 

 

ISSUE:  Council is asked to review and approve a proposed new method of collecting refuse in the City’s 

downtown area.  

 

 MOTION:            

 

              

 

 Roll Call 

 

 

Reports of the City Attorney:   Council rules 

 

Reports of the City Clerk: Boards, Committees, Commissions Vacancies 

 

Board, Commission, Committee Current members Vacancies 

Ashford Civic Plaza 1 6 

Board of Building Code and Fire Prevention Code Appeals 2 3 

Board of Zoning Appeal 4 1 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 1 1 

Community Policy and Management Team  9 1 

Dock Commission 0 5 

Economic Development Authority 4 3 

Historic Preservation Committee 5 7 

Friends of the Appomattox River 1 1 

Keep Hopewell Beautiful 6 4 

Planning Commission/Wetlands Board 4 1 

Recreation Commission 4 3 

Social Services Advisory Board 2 5 

Transportation Safety Board 4 1 

Youth Services Commission 11 4 

Virginia Gateway Region 1 1 

 

Reports of City Council: 

 

Committees 

 



 

4 

 

Individual Councilors   

 

Item No. Councilor Item Description 

IR-1 Partin Semi-Annual/Quarterly "Employee Day to Serve" - Prince George County 

does an Annual "Employee Day to Serve", where a group of county employees 

go out into different areas of the county to pick up trash in order to tackle the 

litter problem they are facing.  For years, Hopewell has talked about this multi-

decade long problem.  This initiative will continue to show that the City of 

Hopewell is very serious about cleaning up the community.  I am requesting that 

council allow the City Manager to look into having Semi-Annual or Quarterly 

Employee Days to Serve in order to further tackle the growing litter problem 

that our city faces 

 

IR-2 Gore Access to Munis/Budget Reporting – Request for Staff to implement 

Council’s access to Munis. Last year signed the documents needed to have 

access to Munis through the shared drive. We need to continue next steps and 

have our accounts set up so that we can view the budget and other financial 

documents in real time. Request Finance Committee be set up immediately 

during this budget cycle. 

 

IR-3 Gore Rule 203 options – Stefan Calos to provide options regarding request to limit 

discussion to ensure that the Council meetings are more efficient  

 

IR-4 Gore Hopewell B-Corp creation - In 2018, I started the “Pillars” initiative in 

response to the Cities of Opportunity Grant award. Pillars calls on all “pillars of 

the community” to share what they provide as free or low cost resources to the 

City and its residents. The goal is to create a local database of services and 

resources to begin to fill in the gaps within the community. Request City 

Council to approve using a $10,000 budget decrease from City Council’s budget 

to create a community incentive for business to become a “local” variation of B-

Corps and to demonstrate that they are “Pillars of the Community”. Money to be 

provided in the form of a grant to any local organization that provides free 

services, supports community events, provides goods, manpower, leave for 

employees to support community initiatives/Big Brother’s Big Sisters, etc. 

Request that Mayor work with City Manager to develop a policy and guidelines 

for submission in anticipation of the FY20 budget adoption. I will be investing a 

portion of the Ward 4 Improvement to create “Pillar” decals to provide to 

businesses that are members. The goal is honor and display the “Pillars in the 

Community” during the “I ♥ Hopewell” festival by conducting a Community 

Awards program. Invite City Council participation to join efforts to co-host 

Community Call to Action and Awards Program.  

IR-5 Gore Beacon Theater Sunday use - Last year, City Council supported adding an 

additional $100,000 to the Beacon Theaters budget for community programs. 

Requesting Beacon Theater finical report to show expenditures from that 

amount and current plans for remaining community funding. Request City 

Council to approve FREE access to theater on Sundays after the Beacon Church 

service for community events. Request City Council develop an Ad-Hoc 

Committee to review submissions and recommended approval of programs to be 

offered at theater for the public. Request that the City Manager serve as the 



 

5 

 

Chair of the Ad-Hoc since his role serves as the Chair of the Beacon Theater 

LLC.  

 

IR-6 Gore Pending List - Request City Manager and City Clerk meet to create list for the 

re-established pending list. City Council approved including the list in the City 

Council Agenda Packet. Since Feb, City Council has requested several Work 

Sessions and IR items. We need a list to visualize order of requests, action 

deadline and next steps. Request City Council approve list to be included in the 

next City Council Agenda Packet for initial approval and then to be updated by 

the City manager’s Office and submitted to Clerk per agenda rules for inclusion 

in City Council’s Agenda Packet.  

 

IR-7 Denton 

 
2nd Floor Renovation 

 

 

Citizen/Councilor Requests 

 

Other Council Communications 

 

Adjournment 



 
REGULAR 
MEETING 

 



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 



 

MINUTES 
 



 

MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 A meeting of the Hopewell City Council was held Tuesday, March 5, 2019, at 5:30 p.m. in the City 
Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
   PRESENT: Jasmine E. Gore, Mayor, Ward 4 
     Patience Bennett, Vice Mayor, Ward 7 
     Deborah Randolph, Councilor, Ward 1 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward 2 
     John B. Partin, Jr., Councilor, Ward 3 
     Janice B. Denton, Councilor, Ward 5 
     Brenda Pelham, Councilor, Ward 6 
      
     John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
     Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager 
     Stefan M. Calos of Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 
     Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 
     Michelle Hicks, Interim Assistant City Clerk 
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Gore opened the meeting at 5:30 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 

 
    Mayor Gore   - present 
    Vice Mayor Bennett  - absent (arrived at 5:35 p.m.) 
    Councilor Randolph  - absent (not on dais) 
    Councilor Partin  - present 
    Councilor Holloway  - present 
    Councilor Denton  - present 
    Councilor Pelham  - present 
 
WORK SESSION 
 
 Council partook of TIMS training in the Council Conference Room. The training was provided by the 
IT Department with assistance from Debbie Pershing.  
 
 Mayor Gore requested a roll call, which was taken as follows: 
 
    Mayor Gore   - present 
    Vice Mayor Bennett  - present 
    Councilor Randolph  - present 
    Councilor Partin  - present 
    Councilor Holloway  - present 
    Councilor Denton  - present 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent* 
 
*Councilor Pelham left after the TIMS training, announcing that she would be attending the Hopewell Girls 
Basketball team in support of her daughter and granddaughters. She said she would return at the end of the 
game.  Mayor Gore allowed and excused this absence. 
  



DRAFT 
March 5, 2019 

Regular Meeting 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2 
 

CLOSED MEETING 
 
 At 6:36 p.m., Councilor Partin moved to go into closed meeting for discussion and consideration of 
specific appointees of city council (boards, commissions, authorities); (2) discussion of specific appointees or 
employees of city council (city manager, city clerk, city attorney); and (3) consultation with legal counsel 
employed or retained by city council related thereto and regarding specific legal matters, (Praxair, TJ Video) 
requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) 
[two items], and (8), respectively. Mayor Gore seconded the motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent* 
    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 
    Councilor Randolph  - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Partin  - yes 
    Mayor Gore   - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
Motion passed 6-0 
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council returned to the dais at 7:39 p.m. and announced that they would not be coming out of closed 
meeting. 
 
 Mayor Gore requested a roll call, as follows: 
 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent 
    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 
    Councilor Randolph  - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Partin  - yes 
    Mayor Gore   - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
 
  

REGULAR MEETING 
 
PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF   
AMERICA 
  

Mayor Gore called the meeting to order, and thanked all for attending. The prayer was led by Rev. Pamela 
Cooper of the John Randolph Pastoral Care, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States 
of America, led by Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager. 
  



DRAFT 
March 5, 2019 

Regular Meeting 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

3 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be approved or received 
by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion under the regular 
agenda at the request of any Councilor. 
 
C-1 Minutes:  Feb. 12, 2019 and Feb. 26, 2019 
C-2 Pending List:  
C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions:  review of Budget Calendar 
C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:   
C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:   
C-6 Routine Grant Approval:  
C-7 Public Hearing Announcement: March 26, 2019 - Conditional Use Request and Zoning Ordinance 

Amendments 
C-8 Information for Council Review: Minutes:  
C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations:  Presentation by Hopewell Downtown Partnership by 

Executive Director Evan Kaufman; presentation on Riverwalk project by Aaron Reidmiller, 
Director of Parks & Recreation and Austin Anderson, Construction Manager; Cities of Opportunity 
Grant by Jasmine E. Gore, Mayor 

C-10 Additional Announcements:   
 
 Mayor Gore read to the audience the items that were on the Consent Agenda. Evan Kaufman gave a 
presentation. He also recognized HDP members and volunteers and thanked them for their hard work. Austin 
Anderson, Construction Engineer, gave a presentation regarding the Riverwalk, including a video. Mayor Gore 
requested that the video be put on the City’s YouTube page. Mayor Gore spoke on the Cities of Opportunity 
Grant, in conjunction with Charles Dane. Mr. Altman requested that the Cities of Opportunity videos also be 
included on the city’s YouTube page.   
 
 Mr. Dane advised that he was contacted by public outreach TV. Lawrence Fishburne is providing a 
program whereby they run 3-5 minute snippets about Hopewell, airing in 50 states, and 5-6 minute corporate 
documentary that we can use, and that they will make available to 1 million viewers.  A one-minute video will 
be aired 400 times regionally, which 84 million viewers will see. The cost for this is $23,000, which funds are 
already available in the economic development fund. Mr. Altman spoke in support of the project, as did 
Councilor Denton, who asked as to the timeframe for the project. Mr. Dane replied that it would be about a 120-
day process. 
 
 Councilor Partin moved to adopt the agenda with the exception of item C-1 under the Consent Agenda, 
and to have a work session on real estate assessment at the March 26, 2019 meeting. Councilor Denton seconded 
his motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent 
    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 
    Councilor Randolph  - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Partin  - yes 
    Mayor Gore   - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
Motion passed 6-0 
 



DRAFT 
March 5, 2019 

Regular Meeting 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

4 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
There were no public hearings. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITIZENS 
 
Lisa Stables of Ward 1 came forward to voice her concerns about the last Council meeting. There were no other 
speakers. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 

Reports of City Manager: 
 
R-1 Francisco Landing Project – March Altman and Charlie Dane provided information about this item.  
Councilor Partin moved to approve the 90-day extension of the closing date for the agreement with Francisco 
Landing Holdings LLC. Vice Mayor Bennett seconded his motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent 
    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 
    Councilor Randolph  - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Partin  - yes 
    Mayor Gore   - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
Motion passed 6-0 
 
R-2 Appropriation of funds for Hummel Ross Road project – Johnnie Butler, City Engineer, presented 
information to Council regarding this item, along with Jerry Byerly, Director of Hopewell Water Renewal. Vice 
Mayor Bennett moved to approve accepting the Hopewell Water Renewal Commission funding for the 50% 
local match of the Hummel Ross Road project per the Wastewater Renewal Capital Budget Improvement, of the 
total project cost $146,000 from Hopewell Water Renewal and the remaining $490,000 to be included in next 
year’s budget. Vice Mayor Gore seconded the motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent 
    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 
    Councilor Randolph  - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Partin  - yes 
    Mayor Gore   - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
Motion passed 6-0 
 
R-3 Approval of refund to Praxair Inc. – Joan Gosier, Hopewell Treasurer, with assistance from Deborah 
Reason, Commissioner of Revenue, presented information to Council regarding the need for the refund. 
Councilor Partin moved to approve the issuance of $425,431.86 for amended tax returns to Praxair Inc. Vice 
Mayor Bennett seconded his motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent 
    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 
    Councilor Randolph  - yes 



DRAFT 
March 5, 2019 

Regular Meeting 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

5 
 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Partin  - yes 
    Mayor Gore   - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
Motion passed 6-0 
 
Reports of City Clerk:   
 

Board, Commission, Committee Current members Vacancies 
Ashford Civic Plaza 1 6 
Board of Building Cod and Fire Prevention Code Appeals 2 3 
Board of Equalization 1 3 
Board of Zoning Appeal 4 1 
Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 1 1 
Community Policy and Management Team  9 1 
Dock Commission 0 5 
Economic Development Authority 4 3 
Historic Preservation Committee 5 2 (citizens)* 
Friends of the Appomattox River 1 1 
Keep Hopewell Beautiful 4 6 
Planning Commission/Wetlands Board 4 1 
Recreation Commission 4 3 
Social Services Advisory Board 2 5 
Transportation Safety Board 4 1 
Youth Services Commission 7 8 
Virginia Gateway Region 1 1 

 
Councilor Partin stated that he thought there was an error in the Keep Hopewell Beautiful listing—that he 
believed it was reversed. The Clerk requested that he provide her with his list of members for comparison, and 
stated she would get back to him. 
 
Councilor Pelham returned and announced that the Hopewell Girls Basketball Team had been victorious. 
 
Reports of the City Attorney:   Council rules – Stefan Calos of Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney presented 
Council with several revised rules.  By consensus of Council, each Rule was voted on individually: 
 
Rule 405 – Councilor Partin moved to approve the Option 2 version of Rule 405 as the new rule. Councilor 
Denton seconded his motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 
    Councilor Randolph  - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Partin  - yes 
    Mayor Gore   - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
 



DRAFT 
March 5, 2019 

Regular Meeting 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

6 
 

 
Reports of City Council: 
 
Committees 
 
Councilor Randolph noted that, earlier in the meeting, Mayor Gore had spoken about burial plots and that since 
she (Councilor Randolph) and Councilor Denton were on the Historical Preservation Committee and asked if 
they could be included in that. 
 
Establish and appoint members to the City Council Retreat Committee 
 
Councilor Randolph moved to postpone the “establish and appoint members to the City Council Retreat 
Committee until the March 5, 2019 meeting. Mayor Gore seconded her motion. Upon the roll call, the vote 
resulted: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 
    Councilor Randolph  - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Partin  - yes 
    Mayor Gore   - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
Individual Councilors   
 
IR-1 Gore Gun violence (return item) – Discussion. No action taken on this item. 

 
IR-2 Gore Shooting Task Force (return item) – Discussion. Council agreed by consensus 

for Mr. Altman to look into reestablishing the Citizen Review Board, which was 
comprised of one representative from every neighborhood watch in the City. 
Altman explained that this would go hand-in-hand with what the Police Chief, 
Kamran Afzal is working on. Altman to discuss with Police Chief and come back 
to Council with information and a recommendation. 
 

IR-3 Gore Letterhead- Discussion. Council agreed by consensus that each would pick the 
style of letterhead they preferred by midnight the following Friday. Each 
councilor would have individual letterhead, and there would be letterhead for 
all of Council that could only be used by approval. 
 

IR-5 Denton Proclamations and condolence certificates (return item) – Discussion. Councilor 
Denton moved to approve the City of Hopewell Proclamation Guidelines with 
the following amendments: to include the Certificate of Recognition and the 
Condolence in the title and in the document, to amend the first bullet under 
“Other” to add “upon recommendation of the City Attorney,” and to delete the 
last bullet under “Other,” and for these changes to be reflected in the 
application form, as well. Mayor Gore seconded her motion. Upon the roll call, 
the vote resulted: 
 



DRAFT 
March 5, 2019 

Regular Meeting 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

7 
 

 Councilor Denton   - yes 
 Councilor Pelham  - yes 
 Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 
 Councilor Randolph  - yes 
 Councilor Holloway  - yes 
 Councilor Partin   - yes 
 Mayor Gore   - yes 
 
Motion passed 7-0 
 

IR-6 Gore Tyler (TIMS) training – Asking Council to set date(s) for Tyler (TIMS) training 
for itself and for the City Clerk. (return item) – This item already DONE 
 

IR-7 Gore ClearGov – ClearGov is a budget app that assists cities with transparency and 
budgeting. I am asking Council to use a portion of its marketing budget to 
purchase this tool (return item).  Discussion. By consensus, City Manager to 
research this and other companies to verify best costs/options for the City and 
to bring information back to Council within 30 days.  
 

It being close to 10:30 p.m., Councilor Pelham moved to extend the meeting past 10:30 p.m. only to hear the IR items 
and remaining two closed session items.  Mayor Gore seconded the motion.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
  Councilor Pelham  - yes 
  Vice Mayor Bennett  - no 
  Councilor Randolph  - no 
  Councilor Holloway  - yes 
  Councilor Partin   - no 
  Mayor Gore   - yes 
  Councilor Denton   - no 
 
Motion failed 4-3 
 
 
 
 

 

Mayor Gore advised Council of the many items that would have to be moved to the next agenda, and asked if 
they wanted to reconsider not staying past 10:30 p.m., but Council disagreed. 

ADJOURN 
 
 The meeting ended at 10:31 p.m. 
      
      /s/ Jasmine E. Gore    
       Jasmine E. Gore, Mayor 
 
 
/s/ Ronnieye L. Arrington  
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 



 

MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING HELD MARCH 19, 2019 
 
 A special "Town Hall" meeting of the Hopewell City Council was held Tuesday, March 19, 2019, 
at 6:00 PM at Carter G. Woodson Middle School, 1000 Winston Churchill Drive, Hopewell, Virginia.  
 
  PRESENT:  Jasmine Gore, Mayor 
     Patience Bennett, Vice Mayor 
     Johnny Partin, Councilor 
     Janice Denton, Councilor 
     Brenda Pelham, Councilor 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
   
     John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
     Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager 
     Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 
 
  ABSENT:  Deborah Randolph, Councilor 
      
 
OTHER STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: Tevya Griffin, Director of Development 
      Aaron Reidmiller, Director of Recreation and Parks 
       Chris Ward, City Planner 
      Tabitha R. Martinez, Special Events Supervisor 
  
 
CITIZEN SIGN-UP SHEET: SEE ATTACHED 
 
 Mayor Gore opened the meeting at 6:05 PM. She thanked the attendees for coming, and thanked 
staff for attending and for their hard work. March Altman, City Manager, introduced himself and thanked 
the attendees and staff. Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager, then explained the process of the Town 
Hall meeting. He asked that everyone participating in the meeting sit at a numbered table. 
 
 The attending citizens then broke into the various numbered tables. Staff members went 
from table to table providing citizens with the City's current Strategic Plan vision statement for 
each defined goal. Participants at each table discussed what is needed to meet that statement and 
if other tasks could be completed to update that vision. The participants at each table listed ideas, 
tasks, goals, etc. on large post-it sheets and placed them on the wall. In total, ten topics were 
discussed. 
 
 Upon completion of the brainstorming sessions, citizens were asked to place a dot on any 
item (from their table or another) to denote items on which they would be interested in investing 
city funds.  
 
 Messrs. Dane and Altman then thanked the attendees and explained that their input, along 
with that given during the remaining town hall events, would be given to Council for discussion 
at its retreat. 
 
 



 

ADJOURN 
 
  The meeting adjourned at 8:00 PM.   
 
 
 
 
                
Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk    Jasmine Gore, Mayor 



MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING HELD MARCH 21, 2019 
 
 A special "Town Hall" meeting of the Hopewell City Council was held Thursday, March 21, 
2019, at 6:00 PM at Hopewell High School, 400 S Mesa Drive, Hopewell, Virginia.  
 
  PRESENT:  Jasmine Gore, Mayor 
      
   
     John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
     Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager 
     Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 
 
  ABSENT  Patience Bennett, Vice Mayor 
     Johnny Partin, Councilor 
     Janice Denton, Councilor 
     Brenda Pelham, Councilor 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
     Deborah Randolph, Councilor 
      
 
OTHER STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: Tevya Griffin, Director of Development 
      Aaron Reidmiller, Director of Recreation and Parks 
      Austin Anderson, Construction Manager 
      Tabitha R. Martinez, Special Events Supervisor 
  
 Assistant Manager, Charles Dane, opened the meeting at 6:10 PM. He thanked the attendees for 
coming, and thanked staff for attending and for their hard work. He then explained the process of the 
Town Hall meeting. He asked that everyone participating in the meeting come close and sit at a table. 
 
 Staff members spoke to the citizen, providing them with the City's current Strategic Plan 
vision statement for each defined goal. Participants discussed what is needed to meet that 
statement and if other tasks could be completed to update that vision. The participants listed 
ideas, tasks, goals, etc. on large post-it sheets and placed them on the wall. In total, ten topics 
were discussed. 
 
 Mayor Gore arrived late as she was traveling from out of town. Upon Mr. Dane’s 
introduction, she welcomed the citizens and thanked them for coming.  
 
 Upon completion of the brainstorming sessions, citizens were asked to place a dot on any 
item to denote items on which they would be interested in investing city funds.  
 
 Mr.  Dane and Mayor Gore thanked the attendees and explained that their input, along 
with that given during the remaining town hall events, would be given to Council for discussion 
at its retreat. 



ADJOURN 
 
  The meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
  
                
Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk    Jasmine Gore, Mayor 



MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING HELD MARCH 28, 2019 
 
 A special "Town Hall" meeting of the Hopewell City Council was held Thursday, March 28, 
2019, at 6:00 PM in the Gym of the Hopewell Community Center, 100 West City Point Road, Hopewell, 
Virginia.  
 
  PRESENT:  Jasmine Gore, Mayor 
     Johnny Partin, Councilor 
     Brenda Pelham, Councilor 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
 
   
     John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
     Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager 
     Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 
 
  ABSENT  Patience Bennett, Vice Mayor 
     Janice Denton, Councilor 
     Deborah Randolph, Councilor 
      
 
OTHER STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: Tevya Griffin, Director of Development 
      Aaron Reidmiller, Director of Recreation and Parks 
      Austin Anderson, Construction Manager 
     Johnnie Butler, City Engineer 
      Chris Ward, City Planner 
      Tabitha R. Martinez, Special Events Supervisor 
  
 Assistant Manager, Charles Dane, opened the meeting at 6:10 PM. He thanked the attendees for 
coming, and thanked staff for attending and for their hard work. He then explained the process of the 
Town Hall meeting.  Mayor Gore also thanked the attendees.  She asked the Clerk for a Roll Call of 
Council, the results of which were: 
 
    Mayor Gore   - present 
    Vice Mayor Bennett  - absent 
    Councilor Randolph  - absent 
    Councilor Partin  - present 
    Councilor Holloway  - present 
    Councilor Denton  - absent 
    Councilor Pelham  - present 
   
 
 Staff members spoke to citizens, initially one-on-one, and then in groups.  Each was 
provided the City's current Strategic Plan vision statement for each defined goal. Participants 
discussed what is needed to meet that statement and if other tasks could be completed to update 
that vision. The participants listed ideas, tasks, goals, etc. on large post-it sheets and placed them 
on the wall. In total, ten topics were discussed. 
 
 Upon completion of the brainstorming sessions, citizens were asked to place a dot on any 
item to denote items on which they would be interested in investing city funds.  
 



 Mr.  Dane and Mayor Gore thanked the attendees and explained that their input, along 
with that given during the remaining town hall events, would be given to Council for discussion 
at its retreat. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
  The meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
  
                
Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk    Jasmine Gore, Mayor 



ROUTINE 
APPROVAL 
OF WORK 
SESSIONS 

April 30, 2019 (budget work session);
May 14, 2019 (two conditional use permits);
May 28, 2019 (spot blight, amendment of Enterprise Zone ordinance



FINANCIAL 
REPORT 

























PUBLIC HEARING 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 (Project Laguna)

May 7, 2019 (FY2020 tax rate); FY2020 school division budget, 
FY2020 city budget)

May 14, 210-9 (school board candidates)



INFORMATION 
FOR COUNCIL 

REVIEW 



1 
 

 
 
 
 

 

  

DRAFT  
 

                                  
 
 
 
 

Hopewell Community Policy & Management Team  
 

Minutes of the Meeting 
 

March 25, 2019 
 

 
 
 
 

Present: Diana Barnes, District 19; Joseph Bizzell, Treasurer’s Office; Janice Denton, City 
Council; Joan Gosier, Fiscal Agent; Jermaine Harris, Hopewell Public Schools; Raymond Spicer, 
Social Services Director 

 

Absent:  Woodrow Harris, Court Services; Chris Wright, Health Department 

 

Others Present: Wanda Brown, CSA Manager; Christene Teasley, CSA Senior Administrative 
Assistant   
 

 
 

 
 

 

 I.    Call to Order - Chairman Barnes called the meeting to order at 2:01 p.m.    
 
 
 
 
 
 

II.   Adoption of Agenda – A motion was made by Joseph Bizzell and seconded by Ray Spicer 
to adopt the March 25, 2019 meeting agenda, with all members voting “aye.” 

 

III.   Public Comments - None 
 
 
 
 

IV.  Approval of Minutes – A motion was made by Jermaine Harris and seconded by Joseph 
Bizzell to approve the February 25, 2019 minutes as submitted, with all members voting 
“aye.”   

 

 

V. Financial Report – Wanda Brown reported that 9.6% of the FY19 budget was expended 
in February, 2019 and that 58.4% was expended July 1, 2018 – February 28, 2019.    
 
 
 

Joseph Bizzell reviewed the CSA Financial Review and Update Report for July 1, 2018 thru 
February 28, 2019.  He stated that the 2019 Actual Program Income for account 505712 
was $1,649,775.61, Program Expenses were $1,713,754.05, CSA Refunds were 
$20,988.56, and Administrative Expenses were $65,996.65.    Joan Gosier presented the 
Hopewell CSA-CPMT Fiscal Agent Year in Review document.  She stated that her office 
developed this document because of an earlier request from Brookie Fowler to compare 
amounts spent from FY2016 thru FY2019.  Mrs. Gosier explained that there was a big 
drop in expenditures; however, the program is still reaching the same number of clients 
and continuing to provide quality services.  Mr. Bizzell stated that we are making an 
impact on Hopewell families, but still have work to do. 
 
 

  



2 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

CMPT Minutes 
March 25, 2019 
 
 
 
.. 
 

 

VI.   Old Business 
 

A. Policy & Procedures – Diana Barnes reported that she sent the rough draft of the 
Policy and Procedures to the City Manager.  She stated that she has done as much 
as she can on the plan because she is not a CSA-CPMT expert and recommended 
a collaboration between all members.   Mrs. Barnes asked Wanda Brown to send 
copies of the September 2018 draft policy to members.   Janice Denton asked if 
they were going to use any information from Petersburg.  Ms. Brown replied that 
information must be specific to Hopewell.     Diana Barnes asked members if they 
preferred to look at areas of expertise individually or work in a group.  Jermaine 
Harris stated that he could look at the section on IEPs and make 
recommendations.  He asked if there was a timeline to complete the manual.  
Diana Barnes replied that she would like it completed by the end of June.  Ray 
Spicer stated that he doesn’t have the knowledge or confidence to say this is how 
the manual should be done and recommended having group discussions.  Diana 
Barnes said that this is a good manual, but doesn’t believe it really addresses 
what should be done when situations arise and how things should be written.  
Wanda Brown recommended following Petersburg’s manual since it contains the 
basics as well as state information, but make it Hopewell specific. 
 
 
 

Joan Gosier asked if the termination of contract for Mr. Ploude was discussed 
during the last meeting.  Diana Barnes stated this was not discussed and thanked 
Mrs. Gosier for sharing the information. 
 
 
 
 

After several discussions, Chairman Barnes and CPMT members unanimously 
agreed upon the following schedule: 
 
 

 April 15, 2019        Petersburg/Hopewell CPMT Joint Training with OCS 
               Hopewell DSS Multipurpose Room, 1:00 – 4:00 p.m. 
 

 

  April 23, 2019       Regular Hopewell CPMT Meeting – 2:00 p.m. 
 

 

April 24, 2019       Hopewell CPMT Policy and Procedures Meeting/ 
                                Writing Workshop, CSA Conference Room, 1:30 – 3:30 p.m.   

 

Mrs. Barnes asked Ms. Brown to send to members policy and procedures 
information before the April 24th meeting. 
 

B. PSSF Grant – Ray Spicer reviewed the application for the PSSF Grant.  He 
explained that the grant, in the amount of $25,316, is a community grant that 
Hopewell Department of Social Services puts together and requires the signature 
of the CPMT Chair.    Mr. Spicer stated that the application for funding will be 
submitted for approval and dispensed under specific guidelines.  

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

 
 

 
 
 
CMPT Minutes 
March 25, 2019 
 
 
 

VII.  New Business – None 
 

VIII. Closed Meeting – Chairman Barnes declared at 3:08 p.m. to enter into a Closed Meeting, 
pursuant to §2.2-3711(A) of the Code of Virginia for the purpose of discussing or 
considering child-specific purchase order requests, which is authorized by §2.2-3711(A)(4) 
of the Code of Virginia.    

 

 
IX. Open Session   

Chairman Barnes reconvened the open session at 4:25 p.m. 
 

Certification of Closed Meeting 
Pursuant to §2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia, the Community Policy and Management 
Team certify that, to the best of each member’s knowledge, (i) only public  business 
matters  lawfully exempt from  open meeting  requirements  under the Virginia Freedom 
of Information Act, and (ii) only such business matters as were identified in the motion by 
which the Closed Meeting was convened, heard, discussed, or considered.   Diana Barnes, 
Joseph Bizzell, Wanda Brown, Janice Denton, Joan Gosier, Jermaine Harris, and Ray Spicer 
voting “yes.” 
 

A.     Approval of Purchase Order Request 
 A motion was made by Joseph Bizzell, and seconded by Janice Denton to approve 
and authorize payment of the March 2019 total expenditures of $248,275.01, as 
discussed in closed session.  The motion passed, with Diana Barnes, Joseph Bizzell, 
Janice Denton, Joan Gosier, Jermaine Harris, and Ray Spicer, voting “aye.”       

      

X. Items of Interest 
Mrs. Barnes reminded members of the schedules that were discussed under Old Business. 
      

XI.  The next meeting is scheduled for April 23, 2019 @ 2:00 p.m. 
 
XII. Chairman Barnes adjourned the meeting at 4:30 p.m. 

XI.  

 
 
Approval of the March 25, 2019 Minutes   
Motion by:    
Seconded by:   
All members voting  



Page | 1  

 

 
MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 1, 2018 MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
CITY OF HOPEWELL, VA 

 

A meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) for the City of Hopewell was held on 
Wednesday, August 1, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. in City Council Chambers, located at 300 North Main 
Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 

Board of Zoning Appeals Members present: 

 Patricia Dostie, Chairman   
 Ashley Epps 
 Johnny Partin, Vice Chairman 
 
Staff Members present: 
 
 Tevya W. Griffin, Director of Development 
 
Chairman Dostie called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
MINUTES 
 
Meeting Minutes – June 20, 2018; motion to approve by Vice Chairman Partin, seconded by 
Ashley Epps. Motion carried 3-0. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Request from Jason R. Benkendorf, an owner of 1009 Bland Avenue, for a Special Use 
Permit to allow the operation of a wood working shop in an out building in the 
Residential, Low Density District (R-1A). 
 
A summary of the application was provided by Chairman Dostie.  The public hearing 
opened by Chairman Dostie at 6:05 p.m. The applicant’s name is Jason Benkendorf, he 
is a wood-turner – turns trees into wooden bowls; he built the shop eight years ago, it 
was used as a hobby and for gifts. In January, he decided to dedicate his craft as a 
business. He works in a 360 square foot building, a shed with no windows and one 
door. It is 50 feet from the back door of his home and inside a fenced area. A picture 
was provided to the BZA members.  There is some noise, electric motor has a dust 
collector, vented from shop.  He requested a business license on January 18th; wanted 
to change name and this is how we discovered he needed approval from the BZA. 
Customers do not come to the home, there is no foot traffic or retail traffic. There are 
online sales. He recently sold crafts in Arts in the Park in Richmond and at the Fort 



Page | 2  

 

Clifton Festival. Vice Chairman Partin made a motion to approve Jason Benkendorf 
for a Special Use Permit for wood turning at 1009 Bland Avenue.  The motion was 
seconded by Mrs. Epps.  The motion carried with a vote of 3-0. 
 

2. Request from Riley Ingram and James Traylor, owners of 265 E Broadway to appeal 
the decision of the Zoning Administrator to allow a repair business for retro game 
consoles (arcade games) to operate in the Downtown Central Business District. 
 
Chairman Dostie read the case aloud. Mr. Ingram stated he was not sure why he was 
here. Mr. Traylor, the co-owner of the property, and the business owner were unable to 
attend the meeting tonight.  Mr. Ingram discussed the previous uses of the building.  It 
was most recently a church but had been vacant for several years.  He also mentioned 
that brown paper was placed in the windows so people could not see the machines in 
the building being refurbished by the business owner.  There has been vandalism in the 
past with rocks thrown through the window. It is a good place for him to store the 
games. Don’t know if it is illegal to store things in a building. If he has to have a 
permit he would run it as an antique shop. Other things need to be cleaned up, for 
example the city jail. City Council needs to close the gap. He should not be required to 
have a permit.   The business owner used to have a video arcade in South Park Mall.  
He moved to Hopewell. Mr. Ingram would like to know why a permit is needed for 
equipment storage downtown.   
 
Mrs. Griffin explained that equipment storage and repair was not an allowable use 
downtown.  She added that an arcade, is also not an allowable use in the B-1 Zoning 
District.  The business owner is not only storing games but repairing games in the 
building.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Partin to postpone the issue until October 2018. The public 
hearing was not closed but was extended.  
 
The motion was seconded by Mrs. Epps.   The motion was approved with a vote of 3-
0.  

 
REPORTS 
 
Report of Director of Development – next meeting date is October 17, 2018. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
A motion to adjourn the meeting was made at 6:35 p.m. by Mr. Partin.  The motion was 
seconded by Mrs. Epps.  The motion passed with a vote of 3 to 0.   
 
Submitted by, 
 
  
Patricia Dostie, Chairman 



Page | 3  

 

 
 
 
Tevya W. Griffin, AICP 
Director of Development 













 
PROCLAMATIONS 

§ 
RESOLUTIONS  

§ 
PRESENTATIONS 

 



 

Proclamation 
O F F I C E  O F  M A YO R  J A S MI NE  E .  G O R E  

City of Hopewell, Virginia 
 
 
 
 
 

Whereas, Sexual Assault Awareness Month draws attention to the fact that sexual violence 
is widespread and is a violation of human rights and dignity; and 
 

Whereas, there is a high prevalence of these crimes going unreported, oftentimes because 
the victims are afraid or fear they will not be believed; and 
 

Whereas, in addition to the immediate physical and emotional effects, sexual assault can 
lead to short and long-term physical and mental health problems including 
anxiety, chronic pain, eating disorders, depression, and sexually transmitted 
diseases or infection; and 
 

Whereas, it is imperative the citizens of the City of Hopewell, Virginia are aware of safety 
measures that can prevent sexual assaults and that victims are able to attain the 
support needed to overcome such a traumatic event; and 
 

Whereas, with leadership, dedication, and community involvement, there is compelling 
evidence that we can be successful in reducing instances of sexual assault in 
Hopewell through education about healthy relationships and what constitutes 
sexual assault , public awareness, and holding offenders who commit acts of 
violence accountable for their actions; and 
 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jasmine E. Gore, Mayor of the City of Hopewell do hereby join anti-
sexual assault advocates and support services in the belief that all community members must be part of 
the solution to end sexual violence and proclaim April as Sexual Assault Awareness Month! 

 
N WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to 
be affixed  the Great Seal of the City of Hopewell in the 
Commonwealth of Virginia  this 23rd day of April, 2019. 
 

  
             

                          Jasmine E. Gore 
Mayor of the City of Hopewell 

I 



 

Proclamation 
O F F I C E  O F  M A Y O R  J A S M I N E  E .  G O R E  

City of Hopewell, Virginia 
 
 

 

 
NATIONAL ALCOHOL AWARENESS MONTH 

 
 

Whereas, alcohol is a primary factor in the four (4) leading causes of death for young persons 
ages 10-21; and, 
  

Whereas, almost 100,000 persons die each year from alcohol-related causes; drinking and 
driving crashes, other accidents, falls, fires, alcohol-related homicides and suicides; 
and, 
  

Whereas, approximately 15 million current drinkers in the United States are dependent on 
alcohol; and, 
  

Whereas, adolescents use alcohol more than tobacco or illicit drugs; and, 
  

Whereas, young people who begin drinking before age 15 are four times more likely to develop 
alcohol dependence than those who begin drinking at or after age 21; and, 
 

Whereas, alcohol abuse is a major factor in unprotected sex, increasing risk of contracting HIV 
or other transmitted diseases; and, 
 

Whereas, the typical American will see 100,000 beer commercials before he or she turns 18 (that 
is more than for sneakers, gum and jeans combined); and, 
  

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jasmine E. Gore, Mayor of the City of Hopewell, in conjunction with the 
Coalition Against Alcohol, Nicotine & Drug Under-Age Use (CAAN-DUU) and the District 19 Community 
Services Board, do hereby proclaim April 2019 as NATIONAL ALCOHOL AWARENESS MONTH, and 
urge the citizens of Hopewell to support efforts that will increase community awareness and support for 
individuals and families coping with alcohol addiction in our community. 

 
N WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be 
affixed  the Great Seal of the City of Hopewell in the Commonwealth of 
Virginia  this 23rd day of April, 2019. 
 

  
             

                          Jasmine E. Gore 
Mayor of the City of Hopewell 

I 















PUBLIC 
HEARINGS 

 



 
PH-1 

 



 
 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Johnny Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice-Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 
□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 
       

  
 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
 Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Amendment of FY19 Hopewell Public Schools Budget     
 
 
ISSUE:  The FY19 budget needs to be amended to reflect the current State and Federal allocations, and 
additional grants received by the Hopewell Public School system. 
  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that City Council approved the request to amend the FY19 
Hopewell Public Schools budget, as presented. 
 
 
TIMING:  A public hearing was advertised to consider this matter on April 23, 2019. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  The Hopewell Public School Division’s FY19 budget was approved by City 
Council based on the FY18 budget allocation prior to the adoption of the FY19 State Budget by the 
General Assembly.  When the budget was approved City Council recognized that an amendment to the 
budget would be required once the General Assembly passed the State budget. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  NO local funds are involved in the budget amendment. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   
 
 
STAFF:   Dr. Melody D. Hackney, Superintendent of Schools  
      Janel F. English, Director of Finance, Hopewell Public Schools 

 







 COMMUNICATIONS 
     FROM CITIZENS 



REPORTS 
OF THE 

CITY 
MANAGER 



 
R-1 

 
 



SUMMARY: 
Y N  Y N  
□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2 □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Johnny Partin, Ward #3 □ □ Vice-Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 
□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 
Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment 
None (Does not apply) 

Order of Business: 
Consent Agenda 
Public Hearing         
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business           
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees 

Action: 
Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
 Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   The Local Choice (TLC) Annual Insurance Renewal 

ISSUE:  Council to approve the 2019-2020 The Local Choice (TLC) health care rates as proposed by 
OneDigital, the City’s benefit consultant, during the April 23, 2019 meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Administration recommends approving OneDigital’s recommendation 
to keep employee premiums the same for the 2019-2020 plan year. 

TIMING: Action is required at this meeting to meet TLC’s May 1, 2019 renewal submission deadline, 
and to move forward with our annual open enrollment period. 

BACKGROUND:  Last year, our annual TLC renewal reflected a slight increase.  In an effort to keep 
employees from experiencing a decrease in their income through an increase in insurance premiums, the 
City fully absorbed the increase in their share of the premium and the employee share remained flat. 
This year, our annual TLC renewal reflects a slight decrease.  In an effort to recover some of the 
increase fully absorbed by the City last year, and to continue with stable/flat rates for our employees, the 
City would like to fully absorb the overall decrease of 2%. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Overall percentage adjustment of -2% (approx. $88,668 decrease for the City 
Share) 

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  Current and recommended rate comparison document. 

STAFF:   Jennifer Sears, Human Resources Director 



High Deductible Health Plan 
(HDHP) with HSA*

Employee Share 
(per pay)

Employee Share 
(per month)

City Share (per 
month)

Total Premium 
(per month)

Employee Only $35.63 $71.26 $392.74 $464.00 
Employee + Spouse $100.95 $201.90 $656.10 $858.00 
Employee + Child $83.40 $166.80 $691.20 $858.00 

Employee + Children $83.46 $166.92 $1,086.08 $1,253.00 
Employee + Family $166.80 $333.60 $919.40 $1,253.00 
Key Advantage 250 Employee Share Employee Share City Share Total Premium

Employee Only $50.50 $101.00 $545.00 $646.00 
Employee + Spouse $151.31 $302.62 $892.38 $1,195.00 
Employee + Child $121.04 $242.08 $952.92 $1,195.00 

Employee + Children $120.98 $241.96 $1,502.04 $1,744.00 
Employee + Family $256.11 $512.22 $1,231.78 $1,744.00 

Key Advantage Expanded Employee Share Employee Share City Share Total Premium
Employee Only $79.00 $158.00 $546.00 $704.00 

Employee + Spouse $204.31 $408.62 $893.38 $1,302.00 
Employee + Child $174.04 $348.08 $953.92 $1,302.00 

Employee + Children $197.98 $395.96 $1,505.04 $1,901.00 
Employee + Family $333.11 $666.22 $1,234.78 $1,901.00 

High Deductible Health Plan 
(HDHP) with HSA*

Employee Share 
(per pay)

Employee Share 
(per month)

City Share (per 
month)

Total Premium 
(per month)

Employee Only $35.63 $71.27 $391.73 $463.00 
Employee + Spouse $100.95 $201.89 $655.11 $857.00 
Employee + Child $83.40 $166.80 $690.20 $857.00 

Employee + Children $83.46 $166.93 $1,083.07 $1,250.00 
Employee + Family $166.80 $333.59 $916.41 $1,250.00 
Key Advantage 250 Employee Share Employee Share City Share Total Premium

Employee Only $50.50 $101.00 $533.00 $634.00 
Employee + Spouse $151.31 $302.62 $870.38 $1,173.00 
Employee + Child $121.04 $242.08 $930.92 $1,173.00 

Employee + Children $120.98 $241.95 $1,470.05 $1,712.00 
Employee + Family $256.11 $512.22 $1,199.78 $1,712.00 

Key Advantage Expanded Employee Share Employee Share City Share Total Premium
Employee Only $79.00 $158.00 $527.00 $685.00 

Employee + Spouse $204.31 $408.62 $858.38 $1,267.00 
Employee + Child $174.04 $348.08 $918.92 $1,267.00 

Employee + Children $197.98 $395.95 $1,454.05 $1,850.00 
Employee + Family $333.11 $666.22 $1,183.78 $1,850.00 

Current TLC Rates for PY 18-19

Recommended TLC Rates for PY 19-20



 
R-2 

 
 













REPORTS  
OF THE 

CITY 
ATTORNEY 



1

Ronnieye Arrington

From: Calos, Stefan M. <scalos@sandsanderson.com>
Sent: Thursday, April 18, 2019 9:31 AM
To: Ronnieye Arrington
Cc: John M. Altman; Debbie Pershing; Charles E. Dane; Michelle Hicks
Subject: RE: Council rules
Attachments: Rules of Procedure, City Council, clean, approved through 4.9.19 (to be adopted after 

all rules approved), by smc as of 4.18.19.pdf; Rules of Procedure, City Council, Rule 203, 
approved and options, clean and blacklined, per councilor request, by smc 4.18.19.pdf

Ronnieye, in follow up to the April 9, 2019 city council meeting, I attach an updated 
draft of all rules approved through that date. It remains four numbered pages. Please 
keep them together, as one document. The document now includes: 
 
• Rule 422 (Proclamation, Certificate, and Letterhead Guidelines), which was approved 
as proposed and with the addition that the documents are "approved and signed by the 
mayor," per the approval boxes you had added to the guidelines as directed by council. 
 
I also attach options to the previously-approved Rule 203 (Discussion Limitation).    
 
Please include this explanatory email in the April 23 agenda packet for the open 
meeting, along with the attached documents, in the order presented here. Thank you, 

Stefan M. Calos    
Attorney 
Sands Anderson PC 
1111 East Main Street, Suite 2400 | P.O. Box 1998 | Richmond,  VA 23218-1998  
(804) 783-7215 Direct | (804) 648-1636 Main | (804) 783-7291 Fax 
www.SandsAnderson.com |  scalos@sandsanderson.com | Bio | vCard 

NOTICE from Sands Anderson PC: This message and its attachments are confidential and may be protected by the attorney/client privilege. If 
you are not the named addressee or if this message has been addressed to you in error, you are directed not to read, disclose, reproduce, 
distribute, disseminate or otherwise use this transmission. Please notify the sender immediately by e-mail and delete and destroy this 
message and its attachments. 



1 

 

HOPEWELL CITY COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

These rules are authorized by the Hopewell Charter, Chapter IV, Section 4  

CONDUCT OF MEETINGS— 

ROLES OF PRESIDING OFFICER, CITY CLERK, AND CITY ATTORNEY 

 

101. Robert’s Rules of Order; Parliamentarian; Presiding Officer – Where these rules are 

silent, Robert’s Rules of Order prevails (Charter IV.4). The city attorney is 

parliamentarian, whose ruling, when requested by or through the presiding officer, is 

final and binding, subject only to appeal to and a two-thirds vote of all council members.  

The presiding officer is the council president (mayor) or, in the mayor's absence, the 

vice-president (vice mayor) (Charter IV.5). If the mayor and vice mayor are absent, the 

temporary chair (see Rule 103) is the presiding officer. 
 

[Approved 6.26.18 (this and other rules are to be adopted once all rules are approved); for consistency and 

gender-neutrality, "chairman" subsequently changed to "chair"] 

 

102. Roll Call; Quorum – The presiding officer takes the chair at the appointed meeting hour, 

and immediately calls council to order. The city clerk then calls the roll, and enters in the 

meeting minutes the names of the councilors as present or absent. In the absence of a 

quorum, the city clerk attempts to procure the attendance of absent councilors. A quorum 

exists when a majority of all councilors is present (Charter IV.4). 

 

103. Temporary Chair – In the absence of the mayor and vice mayor, the city clerk calls 

council to order, and calls the roll. If a quorum exists, council elects by majority vote of 

those present one of its members to be temporary chair until the mayor or vice mayor 

appears. 

 

104. Appeals – See Rule 101. 

 
 [Rules 102 - 104 approved 9.11.18; addition of "city" before "clerk" per 1.22.19 council meeting; for 

consistency and gender-neutrality, "chairman" subsequently changed to "chair"] 

 

105. Voting Methods – Votes upon a motion to adopt an ordinance or resolution are by roll 

call. All other votes are recorded by “ayes” and “nays” (Charter IV.8), unless the 

presiding officer requests a roll call. No councilor is excused from voting except on items 

that consider the councilor's official conduct, or involve the councilor's financial or 

personal interests (Charter IV.8). Although one cannot be compelled to vote (Robert's 

Rules), a councilor (a) who is present but fails to vote without having been excused under 

this rule, or (b) who, in violation of Rule 209, excused himself or herself from the 

meeting to avoid voting, may be disciplined (Charter IV.4; Va. Code § 2.2-3711). 

 
     [Approved 10.9.18] 

 

106. Presiding Officer's Designee – The presiding officer may designate another councilor   

to preside for a single issue. If the mayor is the presiding officer, the vice mayor is 



2 

 

designated. If the vice mayor is unavailable, the presiding officer may designate any 

other councilor. 
 

     [Approved 9.11.18] 

 

CONDUCT OF MEETINGS— 

MEMBERS OF COUNCIL 
 

201. Seating – Councilors are seated at the council chamber dais as follows. Mayor: center; 

vice mayor: immediate left of mayor; most-recent past mayor, if any: immediate right of 

mayor; remainder of members: in increasing numerical order by ward, starting at the far 

left of the mayor and the immediate right of the city manager. If the vice mayor is the 

most-recent past mayor, then the next-most-recent past mayor sits to the right of the 

mayor. The remaining seats are occupied, from the far left, by the city attorney, the city 

manager, the city clerk, and the assistant city clerk, respectively. 

 

Sample Seating Chart 

 
Asst. 
City 

Clerk 

City 
Clerk 

Councilor 
Ward 5 

Councilor 
Ward 3 

Most-
Recent 

Past Mayor   

Mayor              
 

Vice 
Mayor 

Councilor 
Ward 2 

Councilor 
Ward 1 

City 
Manager 

City 
Attorney 

 

[podium] 

 
[Approved 2.26.19] 

 

202. Addressing Council – Councilors and others are addressed or referred to as Mr., Mrs., 

Miss, Ms., Madam, and/or by title.  For example, "Madam Mayor," "Vice Mayor Jones,"  

"Councilor Smith," "Mr. Williams," or "the City Manager." 

 
 [Approved 10.9.18] 

 

203. Discussion Limitation – No member speaks for longer than ten minutes on any item or more 

than twice on any item (Robert's Rules), and not until every other councilor has had an 

opportunity to speak. 
 

         [Approved 1.22.19] 

 

204.   Voting Order – Roll call for voting is by ward number. At the first meeting in January,     

the roll call starts with the Ward 1 councilor, and proceeds numerically, through the Ward 

7 councilor.  At each meeting thereafter, the roll call is rotated by beginning with the 

Ward 2 councilor at the second meeting, and so on until each councilor has voted first.  

Once all councilors have voted first, the process repeats.  

 
[Approved 9.11.18] 

 

205. Motions – All motions, except those to adopt ordinances making appropriations, 

authorizing the contracting of indebtedness, or relating to the issuance of bonds or other 

evidences of debt, are confined to one subject (Charter IV.8). 



3 

 

         [Approved 1.22.19] 

 

206. RESERVED 

   [Approved 1.22.19, with this notation: No changes proposed at this time. Council would continue to reserve 

this number for a future rule. The familiar numbering of current rules would remain.] 

 

207.  Dissent or Protest – During debate, a councilor has the right to express dissent from or 

protest against the adoption of any ordinance or resolution.      

208. Attendance – Councilors notify the city clerk of absence from a scheduled meeting, at 

least 12 hours in advance if possible. The city clerk promptly notifies all councilors of the 

absence, if a quorum might not be present. 

        [Rules 207 and 208 approved 1.22.19] 

 

209.  Excuse During Meeting – Any councilor may excuse himself or herself during a 

meeting, except to avoid voting. 
 

[Approved 10.9.18] 

 

REGULAR AND SPECIAL MEETINGS; AGENDA 
 

301. Regular Meetings – Regular meetings are held in the council chamber, third floor of the 

Municipal Building, beginning at 7:30 p.m., at least once each month (Charter IV.6), on 

such days and at other times or places established at council's annual meeting (Va. Code 

§ 15.2-1416). 

 

302. Special Meetings – Special meetings are called by the city manager, the mayor, or any 

other councilor (Charter IV.6), upon notice that is reasonable under the circumstance (Va. 

Code § 2.2-3708.2) but no less than 12 hours. The city clerk immediately notifies, in 

addition to the public, the city manager, the city attorney, and each councilor by electronic 

mail or other writing if previously requested by the councilor, of the meeting time and 

place, and the specific items of business. No other items are considered unless all 

councilors are present and unanimously consent. Notice is waived if all councilors attend 

the meeting or sign a waiver (Va. Code § 15.2-1418). 

[Rules 301 and 302 approved 2.26.19] 

 

403. Minutes; Recordings – Meetings are electronically recorded. In accordance with 

Robert's Rules of Order, minutes contain a record of what was done at the meeting. A 

councilor may, however, direct through the mayor that the draft minutes of the meeting 

include a brief summary of the councilor's remarks regarding an agenda item. Such 

direction must be given at the same meeting in which the remarks were made and prior to 

the next agenda item. 
 

[Approved 2.12.19] 
 

 



4 

 

405. Communications from Citizens and Others – The communications from citizens 

portion of the regular-meeting agenda is limited to three minutes per speaker and 30 

minutes total. Speakers may contact the clerk in advance of, or sign up in person at, the 

meeting. They are called in the order they signed up, before others in the audience speak. 

Each person addressing council approaches the podium, and gives name and, if a 

Hopewell resident, ward number. No one may address council more than once per 

meeting, unless granted permission by the presiding officer. Speakers address council as 

a body, not individual councilors. Questions are asked of councilors and staff through the 

presiding officer. The presiding officer, subject to free-speech considerations as 

determined by the city attorney, has the authority to deem a matter inappropriate. Upon 

motion of any councilor, a majority of councilors present may allow the speaker to 

continue. 
 

[Approved 3.5.19] 

 

406. . 

 

 

 

 

 

Decorum – Any person who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or slanderous statements, 

or incites disorderly conduct in the council chamber may be reprimanded by the presiding 

officer, and removed from the meeting upon a majority vote of councilors present, excluding 

any councilor who is the subject of the motion. 
 

                                                     [Approved 10.9.18] 

422. Proclamation, Certificate, and Letterhead Guidelines – Council as a body issues 

proclamations, certificates of recognition or condolence, and congratulatory letters, in 

conformance with the attached guidelines. Such proclamations, certificates, and letters 

are approved and signed by the mayor or, in the absence or disability of the mayor, the 

vice mayor (Charter IV.5). For personal communications or statements, an individual 

councilor may use letterhead incorporating the city logo and indicating they are "from the 

desk of" the councilor. No communication or statement issued by an individual councilor 

is or may be deemed an official act of the council, the city of Hopewell, or its agencies. 

 
                    [Approved 4.9.19] 



Approved 1.22.19 (up to two turns and ten minutes total) . . . 

 

203. Discussion Limitation – No member speaks for longer than ten minutes on any item or more 

than twice on any item (Robert's Rules), and not until every other councilor has had an 

opportunity to speak. 

 

                            Option (up to two turns and five minutes total) . . . 

 

Discussion Limitation – No member councilor speaks for longer than ten five minutes on 

any item or more than twice on any item (Robert's Rules), and not until every other councilor 

has had an opportunity to speak. 

 

                           Option (unlimited turns up to ten minutes total) . . . 

 

Discussion Limitation – No member councilor speaks for longer than ten minutes total on 

any item. If a councilor speaks for less than ten minutes initially, more than twice on any item 

(Robert's Rules), and not the councilor may speak a second time until once every other 

councilor has had an opportunity to speak, and a third or subsequent time once every other 

councilor has had equal and alternating opportunities to speak, until every councilor has 

spoken or had an opportunity to speak for up to ten minutes total. 

 

                         Option (unlimited turns up to five minutes total) . . . 

 

Discussion Limitation – No member councilor speaks for longer than ten five minutes total 

on any item. If a councilor speaks for less than five minutes initially, more than twice on any 

item (Robert's Rules), and not the councilor may speak a second time until once every other 

councilor has had an opportunity to speak, and a third or subsequent time once every other 

councilor has had equal and alternating opportunities to speak, until every councilor has 

spoken or had an opportunity to speak for up to five minutes total. 

 



 

 

REPORTS  
OF THE 

CITY CLERK 
 

 



 
REPORTS OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL 
• COMMITTEES 

• INDIVIDUAL REQUEST 
• ANY OTHER COUNCILOR 



 

IR-1 
 



 

IR-2 
 



 

IR-3 
 



 

IR-4 
 















 

IR-5 
 



 

IR-6 
 



 

IR-7 
 



ADJOURN 


	ADPE5E9.tmp
	UCOMMUNICATIONS FROM CITIZENS

	Amendment of FY 19 HPS Operating Budget - CAF & Support Docs.pdf
	042319 - CAF - Amendment of FY19 School Budget
	FY 19 Budget - Amendment of HPS Operating Budget Support Docs

	ADP3D7.tmp
	Sheet1




